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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE Gary S. Clinton, CPA, CPFO

Finance Director

December 27, 2007

To the Honorable Mayor Gary C. Matzner
Members of the Village Council and Citizens of the Village of Pinecrest:

The Government Finance Officers Association recommends that local governments
publish within (6) six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial
statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that recommendation, we hereby
issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Village of Pinecrest for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2007.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the finances of the
Village of Pinecrest. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Village of
Pinecrest has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Village of Pinecrest’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the Village of Pinecrest’s comprehensive framework of internal
controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurarce that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.

The Village of Pinecrest’s financial statements have been audited by Rachlin Cohen &
Holtz LLP a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent
audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Village of
Pinecrest for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amount and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
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statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Village of
Pinecrest’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September, 30, 2007, are fairly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The Village of Pinecrest’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, 1996 pursuant to Ordinance 95-
207 adopted by the Miami Dade Board of County Commissioners on November 12,
1995. The Village of Pinecrest occupies a land area of 8 square miles and serves a
population of 19,328. The Village of Pinecrest receives tax levies on real and personal
properties located within its boundaries.

The Village of Pinecrest has operated under the Council-Manager form of government
since its inception. Policy making and legislative authority are vested in a governing
council consisting of the Mayor and four council members. The Council is responsible
for among other things, adopting ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing the Village
Manager and Village Clerk. The Village Manager is responsible for carrying out the
policies and directives of the Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
government, and for appointing the heads of various departments.

The Village of Pinecrest offers a wide range of services, including, police protection,
maintenance of roadways, parks and recreation, building, planning and zoning and
stormwater services. Certain services are provided through a legally separate fire &
rescue department, the school system and Miami-Dade County.

The Village of Pinecrest has five major departments: Police, BPZ (Building, Planning
and Zoning), Public Works, Parks & Recreation and General Government. General
Government consists of the following sub-divisions; Village Council, Village Manager,
Village Clerk, Finance and Village Attorney.

The annual budget serves as a foundation for the Village of Pinecrest financial planning
and control. All departments of the Village are required to submit requests for
appropriation to the Village Manager and these requests are the starting point for
developing a proposed budget. The Village Manager then presents this proposed budget
to the Council for review. The Council is required to hold public hearings on the
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than September 30, the close of the
Village’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. No
department may expend in excess of amount appropriated for that department within an
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individual fund without the approval of the Village Manager. The Village Manager may
make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations
between departments require the approval of the Village Council. The Village Council
approves supplemental appropriations. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this
report for the general fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.
The general fund, budget to actual report is presented in the required supplemental
information section of this report.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment with which the
Village of Pinecrest operates.

Local economy. While the real estate sales and development have seen a slowdown, the
Village of Pinecrest still enjoys a favorable economic environment and local indicators
point to continued stability. This medium sized municipality is an active community of
involved citizens who take a genuine interest in the social, business, cultural and
governing aspects of their Village. The Village is comprised of an affluent residential
housing stock and several retail shopping malls. There is no industrial area in the
community.

Long-term financial planning. The Village has undertaken several capital improvement
projects as part of its five year capital improvement plan. Historic Parrot Jungle was
purchased and the Village continues renovating it as a municipal recreational and cultural
historical center and gardens called Pinecrest Gardens. Flagler Grove Park will be
completed in March, 2008 and will function as the primary venue for soccer. The
construction of the Pinecrest Branch of the Miami-Dade County Library and Pinecrest
Community Center began in September, 2006 and is scheduled for completion by
February, 2008. A public potable water master plan will proceed and will serve as the
framework to expand the public potable and fire suppression system. Construction

projects will occur as funding becomes available. Resurfacing of Village roads is
planned for 2010 and 2011.

Cash management policies and practices. The Village’s Cash Management Policy has
three elements: (1) funds are collected and deposited as quickly as possible; (2) cash is
released at the last possible moment; and (3) investment objectives are safety of capital,
liquidity of funds, and investment income yield, in that order. The Village’s investment
policy is consistent with local government investment policies delineated in chapter 218,
Florida Statutes. Cash temporarily idle in the Village’s bank operating account is
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invested in overnight repurchase agreements. The funds in the sweep account were
properly collateralized in accordance with Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. Funds collected
on credit cards are deposited in a separate account and transferred periodically to the
Village’s operating account. In addition, surplus cash is invested with the State of
Florida Board of Administration Pooled Equity Fund.

Risk management. The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft
of or damage to and destruction of assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. The Village participates in the Florida League of Cities Municipal Self
Insurance Fund for workers’ compensation, liability and property insurance.

Pension and other post-employment benefits. The Village of Pinecrest sponsors a
defined contribution pension plan 401 (a) with the ICMA RC (International City/County
Management Association, Retirement Corporation. Each full time employee contributes
seven (7) % of his or her pay to the plan, which is matched by a thirteen (13) % Village
contribution. In addition the Village sponsors a 457 deferred compensation plan in which
the employees may contribute on a voluntary basis. A Retirement Health Savings Plan
was established for all full time employees to participate in.

Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest pension arrangements and post-
employment benefits can be found in Notes 3 (E) of the financial statements.

Awards and acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of Pinecrest for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2006. This was the eleventh year that the Village received this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published as easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the Village also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award for its annual budget document for the 2006-2007 fiscal year. This was the tenth
year that the Village received this prestigious award. In order to qualify for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the Village’s budget document was judged to
be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an
operations guide, and a communications device.
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to
express our appreciation to all members of the departments who assisted and contributed
to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the Village

Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of

professionalism in the management of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances.

e
Gary S. Clinton

Finance Director

. Lombardi
Village Manager




Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Village of Pinecrest
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2006
A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest

standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Cober
CHOltz

Accountants Advisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida (the Village) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, which collectively comprise
the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Village’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Village’s mternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village, as of September 30, 2007, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 27,
2007 on our consideration of the Village's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.
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Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida
Page Two

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information on pages 3 to 10
and pages 32 to 34, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
fund statements and schedules and statistical tables as listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Village.
The combining and individual find statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The information shown in
the introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

M Coteo )»4? L

Miami, Florida
December 27, 2007

Cober
LHolz

Accountants Advisors
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Village of Pinecrest, we offer the Village of Pinecrest’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village of
Pinecrest for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in
our letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the Village of Pinecrest exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $123,400,874 (net assets). Of this amount, $5,293,745 (unrestricted net assets)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* The government’s total net assets decreased by $891,623. This decrease was largely a result
of depreciation expenses.

® As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $12,109,753, a decrease of $2,574,542 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 31% of this total amount, $3,706,771 is
available for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was
$7,267,718 or 42% of total general fund expenditures.

* The Village of Pinecrest total debt decreased by $750,000 (5%) during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Village of Pinecrest
basic financial statements. The Village of Pinecrest basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statement. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Village of Pinecrest’s assets and
liabilities with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Village of Pinecrest is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
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Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some that will only result in cash
flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The governmental
activities of the Village of Pinecrest include general government, police, public works (including
highways), parks, and planning and building. The government-wide financial statements report
on only the Village of Pinecrest.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village
of Pinecrest, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village
of Pinecrest are governmental and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental run financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village of Pinecrest maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general, capital
projects, 5 special revenue funds and a debt service fund. Only the general, transportation and
capital projects funds are considered to be major funds. Data from the other funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual data for this nonmajor governmental fund is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Village of Pinecrest adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund as well as its
other governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general
fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary fund. The Village of Pinecrest maintains one type of proprietary fund, an
enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Village of Pinecrest uses an
enterprise fund to account for its Stormwater activities.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
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information for the Stormwater Fund which is considered a major fund of the Village of
Pinecrest.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
are presented immediately following the footnotes.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the Village of Pinecrest, assets exceeded liabilities by $123,400,874 at
the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the Village of Pinecrest’s net assets $109,704,147 (89 %) reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village of Pinecrest uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Village of Pinecrest’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

Village of Pinecrest’s Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Current and other assets § 13,497,113 § 15,694,547 $1,712,110 81,462,481 $ 15,209,223 $ 17,157,028
Capital assets 120,432,796 119,717,810 4,695,732 4,763,070 125,128,528 124,480,880
Total assets $ 133,929,909 $135,412,357 $6,407,842 $6,225,551 $140,337,751 $141,637,908
Long term debt $ 14,080,000 $ 14,840,000 $ - 5 - $ 14,080,000 $ 14,840,000
Other liabilities 2,731,791 2,366,465 125,086 138,946 2,856,877 2,505,411
Total liabilities $ 16,811,791 § 17,206,465 $ 125086 $ 138,946 $ 16,936,877 $ 17,345,411
Net assets $117,118,118 §$118,205,892 §$6,282,756 $6,086,605 $123,400,874 $124,292,497
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $105,008,365 $103,521,597 $4,695,782 $4,763,070 $109,704,147 $108,284,667
Restricted 8,402,982 5,058,775 - - 8,402,982 5,058,775
Unrestricted 3,706,771 9,625,520 1,586,974 1,323,535 5,293,745 10,949,055
Total net assets $117,118,118 §$118,205,892 §6,282,756 $6,086,605 $123,400,874 $124,292.497

The balance of unrestricted net assets $ 5,293,745 may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest is able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net assets.



Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Village of Pinecrest’s net
assets by $1,087,774, the majority of this accounted for by depreciation in the Public Works
category. Key elements in the Changes in Net Assets activity are as follows:

Village of Pinecrest’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 2.823,621 3,157.806 §$ 401.860 § 355,470 3.225,481 3.513.276
Operating grants and contributions 1.252.442 1,177.608 - - 1.252,442 1.177,608
Capital grants and contributions 71.700 - - 351,688 71.700 351.688
General revenues:
Taxes 12,724.310 11.188.038 - - 12,724.310 11,188,038
Other 3.224.549 3.555,187 81411 48,419 3.305,960 3.603.606
Total revenues 20,096.622 19.078.639 483.271 755.577 20.579.893 19,834.216
Expenses:
General government 3.946,447 2.264,779 - 3.946,447 2.264,779
Police 6.807.130 6.768,471 - 6.807,130 6,768,471
Building and zoning 1.800,796 1.641.088 - 1.800,796 1,641,088
Parks and recreation 2.646.670 2.706.295 - 2.646,670 2,706,295
Public works 5.235.870 5.481,480 - - 5.235.870 5,481,480
Interest on long term debt 747,482 781.526 - - 747.482 781,526
Stormwater - - 287.120 305.899 287,120 305.899
Total expenses 21.184.395 19.643.639 287.120 305,899 21.471.515 19.949.538
Increase (decrease) in net assets (1.087.773) (565,000) 196.151 449.678 (891.622) (115.322)
Net assets, October 1 118.205.891 118.770.892  6.086,605  5.636.927 124.202.496  124.407.819
Net assets, September 30 $117.118.118 $118.205.892 §6.282.756 §6.086.605 §123,400.874 §$124.292.497

e Taxes, $12,724,310 comprised (63 percent) of the total revenues, $20,076,623 during the
fiscal year. Most of this category is property taxes, $8,132,032.

e Operating grants and contributions accounted for $1,324,142 (6.6 %) of total revenues.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities
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For the most part, increases in expenses closely parallel inflation and growth in the demand for
services. Additionally, the Village of Pinecrest’s Park & Recreation Department developed
additional recreational facilities in the Coral Pines Park.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The Village of Pinecrest used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Village of Pinecrest’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $12,109,753, a decrease of $2,574,542 in comparison with the
prior year, $14,684,295. Approximate 31 % of this total amount - $3,706,771 constitutes
unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The
remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because
it has already been committed to liquidate contract and purchase orders of the prior period
($3,995,155) or reserved for special revenue funds ($4,407,827).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Village of Pinecrest. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $7,267,718. The General Fund has
an Interfund receivable of $3,561,000 to the Capital Projects Fund. Grants are expected from the
County in 2008 to pay for their portion of the library/community center project. As a measure of
the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 44 percent of total
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 44 percent of that same amount.

_7-



e The fund balance of the Village of Pinecrest’s general fund increased by $1,063,085
during the current fiscal year.

e The fund balance of the Transportation increased by $894,730. The increase is due to
projects being delayed or abandoned.

The debt service fund has no fund balance. The government transfers the exact amount needed
for both principal and interest payments each year. This year $750,000 was transferred into the
fund for principal payments, an increase of $25,000. This year $747,482 was transferred into the
fund for interest payments, a decrease of $61,916.

The budget to actual variances in the General Fund were taxes $705,780, comprised mainly of
difference in the franchise fee estimates provided by the State of Florida and actual collections.
In addition, rising interest rate combined with larger balances on hand than anticipated resulted
in $269,915 of additional interest earnings. A series of large fines to one user resulted in
$160,000 of the $259,604 variance in this item. In the expenditure side of the budget, the
Village instituted a hiring freeze midway during the year and also cut back on expenditures as a
result of a series of legislative proposals and legislation to reduce municipal taxes. The police
department also had several unfilled positions. In total the Police Department was $1,173,947
under budget. The Parks and Recreation Department did not hire an executive director and the

opening of the Community Center was postponed due to construction delays, resulting in a
budget variance of $415,667.

The Transportation Fund

The revenues and expenditures of the Transportation Fund included $3,000,000 for the
construction of a “Park and Ride Lot” for commuters. This project was curtailed after residential
opposition to the project developed. In addition a $500,000 project for access to the Municipal
Center was delayed.

Proprietary fund. The stormwater fund accounts for revenues collected for the maintenance of
the stormwater collection function in the Village. The canals and underground pipes are
maintained by the Village and there are operational costs associated with treating the water. This
year the retained earnings grow from $1,323,535 to 31,586,974 a $263,439 increase. The
increase reflects the fact that funds are budgeted for capital improvements which are depreciated
over many years.

General Fund Budget Highlights

There was $1,000,000 in supplemental appropriations to the original budget for a transfer to the
Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund.

During the year, budgetary revenues exceeded budgetary expenditures adding $1,275,791 to fund
balance.



Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Village of Pinecrest’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
activities as of September 30, 2007, amounts to $120,274,033 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment,
infrastructure — roads and sidewalks, infrastructure — stormwater system and construction in
progress. The total increase in the Village of Pinecrest’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was 0.5 percent.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Water system design.

e Renovations and improvements at Pinecrest Gardens.

e Construction at Flagler Grove Park.

e Construction of the Library/Community Center.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
General government § 6,581,261 § 6,720,832 § - 3 - $§ 6,581,261 $ 6,720,832
Public safety 531,845 605,983 - - 531,845 605,983
Building, planning & zoning 55,226 31,321 - - 55,226 31,321
Parks 26,542,783 21,534,882 - - 26,542,783 21,534,882
Public works 86,562,918 90,655,682 - - 86,562,918 90,655,682
Stormwater - - 4,695,732 4,763,070 4,695,732 4,763,070
Totals $120,274,033 $119,548,700 $4,695,732 $4,763,070 $ 124,969,765 $ 124,311,770

Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s capital assets can be found in note 2C.

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest had total bonded debt
outstanding of $14,840,000. The total debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the Village
for which the Village is liable in the unlikely event of default.

Village of Pinecrest’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activities
2007 2006

General Obligation Bonds  $14,840,000 $15,590,000

The Village of Pinecrest decreased its total debt by $750,000 (4.8%) during the current fiscal
year. There are three issues outstanding; Greer Park (formerly known as Pinecrest Park),
$5,675,000 which matures in FY2019; Pinecrest Gardens (formerly known as the Parrot Jungle),
$6,410,000 which matures in FY2022 and the Library/Community Center, $2,755,000 which
matures in FY2024.



The last Village of Pinecrest issue $3,075,000 was made in conjunction with the Florida
Municipal Loan Council $15,585,000 on July 1, 2004. These bonds were carried the following
bond ratings:

e Moody’s Investor Service — Aaa
e Standard & Poors — AAA
e Fitch - AAA.

Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s long term debt can be found in note 2E.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
e The unemployment rate for Miami-Dade County/Fort Lauderdale is currently 4.2 %,

which is an increase from a rate of 3.1% a year ago. The Village of Pinecrest residents
will have a lower unemployment rate than is reported for the county.

e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance increased to $7,267,718. The Village of
Pinecrest has appropriated $730,540 of this amount for spending in the 2008 fiscal year budget.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, 12645
Pinecrest Parkway, Pinecrest, Florida 33156-5931.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets, not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:

Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Unamortized bond issue costs
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Current:
Accounts payable
Revenues collected in advance
Leases payable, due in one year
Compensated absences, due in one year
Bonds payable, due in one year

Total current liabilities
Non-current:
Unearned revenues

Premium on bonds payable
Leases payable, due in more than one year

Compensated absences, due in more than one year

Bonds payable, due in more than one year
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:

Investments in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:

Capital projects

Transportation and public safety programs
Unrestricted

Total net assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Business
Governmental -type

Activities Activities Total
§ 12,392,788 $1,637,867 $ 14,030,655
1,104,325 74,243 1,178,568
13,497,113 1,712,110 15,209,223
17,437,190 - 17,437,190
5,640,339 - 5,640,339
8,549,061 - 8,549,061
2,150,564 - 2,150,564
713,978 - 713,978
85,782,901 4,695,732 90,478,633
158,763 - 158,763
120,432,796 4,695,732 125,128,528
$133,929,909 $6,407,842 $140,337,751
1,099,922 10,820 1,110,742
- 114,266 114,266
21,205 - 21,205
248,951 - 248,951
780,000 - 780,000
2,150,078 125,086 2,275,164
346,842 - 346,842
196,909 - 196,909
15,104 - 15,104
42,858 - 42,858
14,060,000 - 14,060,000
14,661,713 - 14,661,713
16,811,791 125,086 16,936,877
105,008,365 4,695,782 109,704,147
3,995,155 3,995,155
4,407,827 4,407,827
3,706,771 1,586,974 5,293,745
$117,118,118 §6,282,756 $123,400,874

See notes to basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Building, planning and zoning
Parks and recreation
Public works

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

-Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Capital Other Total
General Transportation  Projects  Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$12,724310 § - $ -3 - §$ 12,724 310
1,676,528 - - - 1,676,528
1,856,480 1,252,442 71,700 157,223 3,337,845
606,006 - - - 606,006
528,924 - - 12,163 541,087
454,555 207,250 144,326 1,265 807,396
379,713 - 10,637 - 390,350
18,226,516 1,459,692 226,663 170,651 20,083,522
2,810,851 - 996,245 - 3,807,096
6,610,386 - - 118,981 6,729,367
1,823,887 - - - 1,823,887
2,281,367 - 5,372,907 - 7,654,274
603,607 538,962 - - 1,142,569
- - - 750,000 750,000
- - - 750,871 750,871
14,130,098 538,962 6,369,152 1,619,852 22,658,064
4,096,418 920,730 (6,142,489)  (1,449,201)  (2,574,542)
- - 1,500,000 1,500,871 3,000,871
(2,974,871) (26,000) - - (3,000,871)
(2,974,871) (26,000) 1,500,000 1,500,871 -
1,121,547 894,730 (4,642,489) 51,670 (2,574,542)
6,204,633 3,440,365 5,018,235 21,062 14,684,295
$ 7,326,180 § 4,335,095 § 375,746 § 72,732 $ 12,109,753

See notes to basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Amounts reported for governmental activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 14)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The details of the difference are as follows:

Capital outlay
Depreciation
Disposal of capital assets

Net adjustment

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, master leases) provides current

financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal

of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.

The details of the difference are as follows:

Bonds payable
Issuance premium
Issuance costs
Principal payments
Accrued interest
Capital lease

Net adjustment

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds:

The detail of the difference is as follows:

Compensated absences

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Page 12)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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$(2,574,542)
$6,035,226
(5,111,744)
(198,149)
725,333
$ 13,100
(10,347)
750,000
3,389
11,385
767,527
(6,091)

$(1,087,773)




VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Total current assets

‘Non-current assets:
Capital assets, net

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Revenues collected in advance

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Stormwater
Fund

$1,637,867
74,243

1,712,110

4,695,732
4,695,732
$6,407,842

$ 10,820

114,266
125,086

4,695,782

1,586,974

$6.282.756



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Stormwater
Fund
Operating revenues:
Utility fees $ 401,860
Miscellaneous -
Total operating revenues 401,860
Operating expenses
Cost of sales 186,435
Depreciation 100,685
Total operating expenses 287,120
Operating income 114,740
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest earnings 81,411
Change in net assets 196,151
Total net assets, beginning 6,086,605
Total net assets, ending $6,282,756

See notes to basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to supplies

Cash flows provided by operating activities

‘Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Operating income

Depreciation

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable
Decrease in revenues collected in advance
Increase in accounts payable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Stormwater
Fund

$ 373,641

(175,705)

197,936

(33,347)

81,411

246,000

1,391,867

1,637,867

$ 114,740

100,685

(3,629)
(24,590)

10,730
83,196

5197936
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NOTE 1.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting entity

The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, 1996 pursuant to Ordinance 95-207
adopted by the Miami Dade Board of County Commissioners on November 12, 1995. The
Village of Pinecrest occupies a land area of eight (8) square miles and serves a population of
19,530. The Village of Pinecrest operates under a Council-Manager form of government and
provides the following services: public safety (police), public works, building, planning and
zoning, code enforcement, stormwater management, and parks and recreation. The basic
financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental and financial reporting principles.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Government Accounting Standards
which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The
definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials are
accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of financial reporting
is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of the
elected officials. The financial reporting entity consists of the Village of Pinecrest,
organizations for which the Village of Pinecrest if financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Village of
Pinecrest are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financials statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Village of Pinecrest is financially accountable for a component
unit if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and it is able to
impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Village of Pinecrest.
Based upon the application of these criteria, there were no organizations that met the criteria
described above.

. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net assets and the statement
of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Village
of Pinecrest. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

-19-



NOTE 1.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fund.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as is used for the proprietary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the Village considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the Village.

The Village of Pinecrest reports the following major governmental funds:

e The general fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

e The capital projects fund receives transfers from the general fund as well as grants and
accounts for purchases of land and improvements to the parks and buildings in the
community.

e The Transportation Fund receives grants from the State of Florida and from Miami-Dade
County.

The Village reports its only proprietary fund as a major fund:

e The stormwater fund (an enterprise fund) accounts for the stormwater control activities of
the community. Funds are received from business and residential users and used to
maintain the stormwater collection system.
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NOTE 1.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued)

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989 generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The Village of Pinecrest has elected not to follow subsequent
private sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. General Revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the stormwater fund are charges to business and residential
customers for stormwater system maintenance. Operating expenses report on the costs to
maintain the stormwater system, the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity

1. Deposits and investments

Cash and cash equivalents, which are cash and short-term investments with maturities of
three months or less, imnclude cash on hand, a repurchase agreement and investments with
the State Board of Administration Investment Pool. Investments are reported at fair value.

2. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, land, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e. g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$10,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date
of donation.
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NOTE 1.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (Continued)

2. Capital assets (Continued)

The costs or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets of the Village are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

o Buildings — 40 years
o Improvements — 15 years
o Equipment:
» Cars — 5 years
» Trucks — 10 years
» Equipment — 5 years
» Computer equipment — 3 years
o Infrastructure:
= Roads — 25 years
» Stormwater system — 50 years

. Compensated absences

Village employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length
of service and the department that the employee services.

The Village’s sick leave policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
sick pay benefits. Such leave is accrued and reported as a fund liability when it is probable
that the Village will compensate the employee in the following fiscal year. Unused sick
pay is not paid at termination.

The Village’s vacation policy is that earned vacation must be taken within one year of the
employee’s anniversary. Carryover is limited to two hundred and forty (240) hours.
Unused vacation pay, if any, is paid with the employee’s termination or retirement. Those
amounts estimated to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources from the
general fund are reported as expenditures and a fund liability of the general fund.

. Long term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-
type activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported
as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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NOTE 1.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (Continued)

4. Long term obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as an other financing source. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as an
other financing uses. Issuance cost, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received are reported as debt service expenditures.

. Property taxes

Property taxes for the current year were assessed and collected by Miami-Dade County and
subsequently remitted to the Village. Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year
and are first billed (levied) and due the following November 1. Under Florida law, the
assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal, school board and
special district property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County property
Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws for the State regulating tax assessments are
also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes
permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of
assessed taxable valuation). The millage rate assess by the Village for the year ended
September 30, 2007 was 2.40 mulls.

The tax levy of the Village is established by the Village Council prior to October 1 of each
year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the tax levy, which
includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Board and special taxing
districts.

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 of each year.
Each assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department of
Revenue for review to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of
State Statures.

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1, each
year or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County
Property Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails to each property owner on the assessment
roll a notice of the taxes due and Miami-Dade County also collects the taxes for the
Village. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of such notice from Miami-Dade County, with
discounts at the rate of four percent (4%) if paid in the month of November, three percent
(3%) if paid in the month of December, two percent (2%) if paid in the month of January
and one percent (1%) if paid in the month of February. Taxes paid during the month of
March are without discount, and all unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property
become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year following the year in which
taxes were assessed. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Miami-Dade
County are provided for in the laws of Florida. There were no material delinquent property
taxes at September 30, 2007.
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (Continued)
6. Fund equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose.

7. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although
theses estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current events and actions it
may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and investments
Deposits
In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of
Florida to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for
Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to
deposit with the Treasurer or banking institution eligible collateral. In the event of a
failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be
responsible for covering any resulting losses.
Investments

The Village of Pinecrest had the following investments as of September 30, 2007:

Investment Maturities Fair Value

Repurchase agreements
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 10/15/2032  $1,939,387

The Village of Pinecrest also participates in the State Board of Administration (SBA)
investment pool which is unrated.
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NOTE 2.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A. Deposits and investments (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

The Village of Pinecrest has an investment policy that emphasizes the safety of
principal while maintaining adequate liquidity to meet its needs. Investments are
limited to the highest ratings by two of the nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations (NRSRO) - (Standard and Poors and Moody’s Investment Services).
Investments in US Agencies are rated AAA and Aaa respectively. Excess funds are
also sent to the SBA for their investment. The SBA does not have a rating from a
NRSRO. This is the only external investment pool that the Village of Pinecrest can
invest 1n.

Concentration Credit Risk

GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure when the percent is 5% or more in any one
issuer. The investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank is 14.4%. Given the restriction
to the highest rating, the additional concentration is not viewed to be an additional risk
to the Village.

External investment pools are exempt from Concentration and Interest Rate Risk
disclosures.

Subsequent Event

On November, 29, 2007, the trustees of the State Board of Administration (SBA),
responding to withdrawals totaling 40% or $10 billion of funds by local government,
following a downgrade or nearly $2 billion of the assets of the Local Government
Investment Pool implemented a temporary freeze on the assets of the pool. The
Trustees of SBA restructured the fund dividing the assets into Plan A and Plan B. Plan
A will have investment grade assets and continue to operate as a money market Type
fund. Plan B will contain assets in default, impaired, extended maturity dates which
have significant credit risk.

Plan A of the pool reopened on December 3, 2007 and limits the amount of assets
which can be withdrawn in the short term to 15% or $2 million of the fund. New
deposits can be withdrawn at any time. The amount available for withdrawal will
increase has more assets mature. On December 21, 2007, Standard and Poor’s ratings
services assigned its “AAAM?” principal stability fund rating to Pool A.

The Village of Pinecrest on November 30, 2007 had $9.664 (unaudited) million in the
fund. Plan A had a balance $8,274 (unaudited) million which is considered liquid and
Plan B had a balance of $1,390 million which is not considered liquid. Since the
reopening of the pool the Village of Pinecrest has made both deposits and withdrawals.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 2. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Receivables

Receivables as of September 30, 2007 for the Village’s individual major and nonmajor funds,
in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

follows:

Note receivable
Intergovernmental
Franchise and utility
Ad valorem taxes
Other

Gross receivables

Less allowance for doubtful accounts - - -

Total receivables

Other
Nonmajor
Trans- Capital Governmental Storm-

General portation Projects Funds water Total
$346,842 § -3 -3 $ - § 346,842
112,912 176,032 71,700 - 395,671
152,865 - - - 152,865
137,395 - - - 137,395
71,170 - - 74,243 145,795
821,184 176,032 71,700 74,243 1,178,568
$821,184 $176,032 $71,700 $ $74,243 §$1,178,568

In December 2001, the Village executed a note receivable under a lease purchase agreement
with Miami-Dade County School Board for land to be used as a parking lot. Under the terms
of the agreement, the Village is to receive annual rentals, including interest of approximately
$91,600, payable in monthly installments of approximately $7,600, including interest at 3.95%
beginning in January, 2002 and through December 2011. The balance of the note receivable

at September 30, 2007 of $346,842 is included in deferred revenues.

Future minimum lease payments reflecting principal payments on the note to be received are

as follows:

For the year ended September 30:

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 2. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2007 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Adjustments Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land § 17,423,144 § 14,046 § - 8 - § 17,437,190
Construction in progress 455,409 5,256,379 (7,477) (63,972) 5,640,339
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 17,878,553 5,270,425 (7,477) (63,972) 23,077,529
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 9,233,803 76,934 - - 9,310,737
Improvements 2,961,909 - 4,559 (12,374) 2,954,094
Equipment 2,007,397 216,984 - (121,803) 2,102,578
Infrastructure 149,363,740 470,883 2,918 - 149,837,541
Total capital assets, being depreciated 163,566,849 764,801 7,477  (134,177) 164,204,950
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (537,794) (223,882) - - (761,676)
Improvements (626,194) (177,336) - - (803,530)
Equipment (1,211,028) (177,572) - - (1,388,600)
Infrastructure (59,521,686) (4,532,954) - - (64,054,640)
Total accumulated depreciation (61,896,702) (5,111,744) - - (67,008,446)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 101,670,147  (4,346,943) 7477  (134,177) 97,196,504

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:

$119,548,700 $ 923,482 $

$(198,149) §120,274,033

Infrastructure $ 7,669910 § 33347 $ - 3 - $ 7,703,257
Less accumulated depreciation

for infrastructure (2,906,840) (100,685) - - (3,007,525)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 4,763,070 (67,338) - - 4,695,732
Business type activities capital assets, net $§ 4,763,070 $§ (67,338) $ - $ - $ 4695732
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 2. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
C. Capital assets (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as follows:

Govermmental activities:

General government $ 139,571
Public safety 126,693
Public works 4,608,240
Building, planning, and zoning 6,347
Parks and recreation 230,893

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities $5,111,744

Business type activities:
Stormwater $ (100,685)

Total depreciation expense, business type activities $ (100,685)

D. Transfers

The composition of interfund operating transfers as of September 30, 2007, is as follows:

Interfund transfers:

Transfers out Transfers In Amount Transfer Purpose
General Fund Debt service $1,474,871 Provide debt service funds
General Fund Capital Fund 1,500,000 Provide capital project funds
Transportation Fund Debt service 26,000 Provide debt service funds

Total $3,000,871

There is one Interfund due to/from:

Due To Due From Amount Transfer Purpose
General Fund Capital Project $3,561,000 Provide operational funds

E. Long term debt

Florida Municipal Loan Revenue Bonds, Series 1999, Series 2002 and Series 2004. The
Village of Pinecrest has issued three bond issues. The first issue was for $8,155,000 for the
development of Pinecrest Park, the Village Hall and other capital improvement projects. The
second issue was for $7,740,000 for the purchase and development of Parrot Jungle which is
known as Pinecrest Gardens. The third issue is for the construction costs of the
Library/Community Center at Pinecrest Gardens, $3,075,000. The bonds have an outstanding
balance of $14,840,000, and are due in varying installments through July 1, 2024 and bear
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 2. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

E. Long term debt (Continued)

interest rates from 3.2% to 5.5% with interest paid semiannually. The principal and interest
on these bonds are payable from a pledge of non-ad valorem revenues, as defined.

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ended September 30:
2008 § 780,000 $ 731,212 §$ 1,511,212
2009 815,000 699,638 1,514,638
2010 845,000 665,873 1,510,873
2011 885,000 630,060 1,515,060
2012 925,000 591,275 1,516,275
2013-2017 5,325,000 2,220,695 7,545,695
2018-2022 4,825,000 787,035 5,612,035
2023-2024 440,000 35,115 475,115

$ 14,840,000 $6,360,903 $21,200,903

The Village leases a vehicle and office equipment under non-cancelable capital leases expiring
in 2010. The total liability for such leases was $36,309 as of September 30, 2007. The future
minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2008 $21,205
2009 10,584
2010 4,520
Total minimum lese payments 36,309
Less amount representing interest 1,815
Present value of net minimum lease payments 34,494
Less current portion 21,205
Capital lease obligations excluding current portion $13,289

Changes in long-term debt of governmental activities during the year are summarized as

follows:
Balance Balance Due Within
9/30/06 Additions Reductions 9/30/07 One Year
Bonds payable $15,590,000 $ - $ 750,000 $14,840,000 $ 780,000
Capital leases 47,694 12,053 23,438 36,309 21,205
Compensated absences 285,718 291,809 285,718 291,809 248,037

$15,923,412 $303,862 $1,059,156 $15,168,118 $1,049,242

Compensated absences are paid from the General Fund in the form of vacation pay.
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NOTE 3.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Risk Management

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of or damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters for
which the Village carries insurance through the Florida League of Cities. There were no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the coverage in the prior year. There were
no settled claims that have exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three years.

. Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. Although the
outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the Village’s
management and legal counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition of the Village.

. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute
a liability of the applicable funds. In the opinion of management, future disallowances of
grant expenditures, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the Village’s financial
condition.

. Interlocal agreement

On June 17, 1997 the Village entered into an interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade County to
pass thru the Village’s share of the franchise fee on electricity collected by Florida Power and
Light. Under this agreement, the County remitted $1,746,727 to the Village for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2007. This agreement will be in effect as long as the Ordinance
establishing the collection of these fees is in place.

On July 17, 2003 the Village entered into another interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade
County. Under this agreement, the County remitted $649,224 to the Village for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2007 for the purpose of providing transportation services within the
Village. This agreement shall remain if effect as long as the County receives net proceeds
from the '2 cent County Transit System Surtax as authorized by Miami-Dade County
Ordinance No. 02-116 pursuant to the authority of Section 212.055(1) Florida. Statutes 2002.

. Defined Contribution Plan

The Village of Pinecrest 401(a) Money Purchase Plan is a defined contribution plan
established by the Village to provide benefits at retirement for its employees. All full time
employees must be a member of the plan. Plan members are required to contribute 7% of base
earnings for the plan year. The Village is required to contribute 13% of base earnings for
each participant for the plan year. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are
established and may be amended by the Village Council.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
E. Defined Contribution Plan (Continued)

The Plan’s assets are administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation. The Village does not
exercise any control over the plan assets. Village contributions to the plan were $786,012.
There are current year forfeitures of $55,698, of which $15 will be used in lieu of Village
contributions in fiscal 2008. Employee contributions were $423,291 for the year ended
September 30, 2007.

F. Construction Commitments

A construction commitment is defined as the difference between the contract price of a project
and the amount paid on that contract through the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.
Outstanding construction commitments at September 30, 2007 are approximately $3,955,000
for projects which include the development of various park renovations and improvements.
These projects are all fully funded.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(Other Than MD&A)




Taxes:

Ad valorem taxes
Franchise fees
Utility taxes
Communications services tax
Business tax

Total taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous revenue:
Interest earnings
PHS parking rent
Other miscellaneous revenues

Total miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Building, planning and zoning
Parks and recreation
Public works

Total expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Appropriation of prior years fund balance

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts  (Negative)
$7,985,830 $7,985,830 $8,132,032 § 146,202
1,385,190 1,385,190 1,852,068 466,878
1,675,560 1,675,560 1,802,388 126,828
866,820 866,820 815,593 (51,227)
105,130 105,130 122,229 17,099
12,018,530 12,018,530 12,724,310 705,780
1,706,980 1,706,980 1,676,528 (30,452)
1,816,090 1,816,090 1,856,480 40,390
595,970 595,970 606,006 10,036
269,320 269,320 528,924 259,604
184,640 184,640 454,555 269,915
91,650 91,650 91,658 8
255,770 255,770 293,349 37,579
532,060 532,060 839,562 307,502
16,938,950 16,938,950 18,231,810 1,292,860
3,125,190 3,125,190 2,810,707 314,483
7,645,440 7,645,440 6,596,346 1,049,094
1,826,000 1,826,000 1,823,887 2,113
2,670,230 2,670,230 2,281,367 388,863
994,010 994,010 662,069 331,941
16,260,870 16,260,870 14,174,376 (2,086,494)
1,334,290 2,334,290 - 2,334,290
2,012.370 3,012,370 2,974,871 37,499
(678,080)  (678,080) (2,974,871) 2,296,791
$ - 3 - $1,082,563 $1,082,563

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules.



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TRANSPORTATION FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Variance
with Final
Budget
Actual Positive
Amounts  (Negative)

$1,252,442 $ 124,692
207,250 154,430
(3,000,000)

1,459,692 (2,720,878)

538,962 3,848,528

538,962 3,848,528

920,730 1,127,650

- (532,920)
(26,000) 300,000

(26,000)  (232,920)

$ 894,730 § 894,730

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
"Revenues:
Intergovernmental $1,127,750 $1,127,750
Interest 52,820 52,820
Maiscellaneous 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total revenues 4,180,570 4,180,570
Expenditures:
Public works 4,387,490 4,387,490
Total expenditures 4,387,490 4,387,490
Excess of revenues over expenditures (206,920)  (206,920)
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriation of prior year's fund balance 532,920 532,920
Transfers out (326,000)  (326,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 206,920 206,920
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 -
-33-
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

NOTE 2.

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all of the governmental funds on a basis consistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States except for encumbrances.

The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

h.

The Village Manager submits to the Council a proposed operating and capital budget for
the ensuing year. The budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing
them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a budget ordinance.
The Village Council, by motion, may make supplemental appropriations for the year up to
the amount of revenues in excess of those estimated. There were no supplemental
appropriations during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control devise during the year
for all of the funds.

The Village Manager is authorized to transfer part of all or an unencumbered appropriation
within a department within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
appropriations of any department or fund must be approved by the Village Council. The
classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is at the
FUND level.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Unencumbered amounts are
reappropriated in the following year’s budget.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended. Individual type amendments
are not material in relation to the original appropriations.

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL RESULTS

The only funds with GAAP to Budgetary basis differences were the General and Capital
Improvement Funds.

The following adjustments are necessary to present the actual data on a budgetary basis from the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.

Capital
General Improvements
Fund Fund
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $1,121,547 § (4,642,489)
Expenditures on a budgetary basis (encumbrances) September 30, 2006 19,478 140,152
Expenditures on a budgetary basis (encumbrances) September 30, 2007 (58,462) (3,936,692)
Net change in fund balance (budgetary basis) $1,082,563 § (8,439,029)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for particular purposes.

Police education fund — This fund receives funds from judgments, donations and grants
to be used to provide training to police department personnel.

Police forfeiture fund — This fund receives forfeited cash and assets of individuals
involved in drug enforcement activities and must be used for police related services.

Hardwire fund — This fund receives funds derived from a tax on land based phone lines
and is used to fund 911 services.

Wireless fund — This fund receives funds derived from a tax on cell phones and is used
to fund 911 services

Debt Service Fund
Debt service fund - This fund is used to accumulate resources and distribute principal,

interest and bond related issuance costs on long-term debt payable by the Village of
Pinecrest.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Total Total
Police Police Special Debt Non-major
Education Forfeiture Hardwire Wireless Revenue Service  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Funds
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - 8 - $69,665 $87,558 $157,223 $ - $ 157,223
Fines and forfeitures 5,563 6,600 - - 12,163 - 12,163
Interest 492 369 328 76 1,265 - 1,265
Miscellaneous - - - - - - -
Total revenues 6,055 6,969 69,993 87,634 170,651 - 170,651
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety 1,225 - 60,051 57,705 118,981 - 118,981
Public works - - - - - - -
Debt service: - - -
Principal - - - - - 750,000 750,000
Interest - - - - - 750,871 750,871
Total expenditures 1,225 - 60,051 57,705 118,981 1,500,871 1,619,852
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 4,830 6,969 9,942 29929 51,670 (1,500,871)  (1,449,201)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - 1,500,871 1,500,871
Transfers out - - - - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - - - - - 1,500,871 1,500,871
‘Net change in fund balances 4,830 6,969 9,942 29,929 51,670 - 51,670
Fund balances, beginning 7,277 603 11,797 1,385 21,062 - 21,062
Fund balances, ending $ 12,107 § 7,572 $21,739 $31314 §$ 72,732 $ - $ 72,732
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
POLICE EDUCATION FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual  Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures $ 3,550 $3,550 $ 5,563 $ (2,013)
Interest 200 200 492 (292)
Donations - - - -
Total revenues 3,750 3,750 6,055 (2,305)
Expenditures:
Public safety 7,850 7,850 1,225 6,625
Total expenditures 7,850 7,850 1,225 6,625
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (4,100) (4,100) 4,830 8,930

Other financing sources (uses):

Appropriation of prior year's fund balance 4,100 4,100 - 4,100
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,100 4,100 - 4,100
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - $4830 $ 4,830
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
POLICE FORFEITURE FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety

Total expenditures
"Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriation of prior year's fund balance

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

-38-

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual  Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ - % - $6600 $ 6,600
30 30 369 339
30 30 6,969 6,939
30 30 6,969 6,939
30 30 (30)
30 30 ; (30)
$ -8 - $699 $ 6969




VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HARDWIRE FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual  Positive
Original  Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $64,130 $64,130 $69,665 $ (5,535)
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Interest 50 50 328 (278)
Donations - - - -
Total revenues 64,180 64,180 69,993 (5,813)
Expenditures:
Public safety 67,460 67,460 60,051 7,409
Total expenditures 67,460 67,460 60,051 7,409
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,280) (3,280) 9,942 13,222

Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriation of prior year's fund balance 3,280 3,280 - 3,280
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -

3,280

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,280 3,280

Net change in fund balance $ - 9 - $9942 § 9,942
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
WIRELESS FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts  Actual  Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

‘Revenues:
Intergovernmental $55,000 $55,000 $87,558 $ (32,558)
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Interest 100 100 76 24
Donations - - - -
Total revenues 55,100 55,100 87,634 (32,534)
Expenditures:
Public safety 62,490 62,490 57,705 4,785
Total expenditures 62,490 62,490 57,705 4,785
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (7,390) (7,390) 29,929 37,319

Other financing sources (uses):

Appropriation of prior year's fund balance 7,390 7,390 - 7,390
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 7,390 7,390 - 7,390
Net change in fund balance $ - § - $29,929 $ 29,929
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Expenditures:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

DEBT SERVICE FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Variance
with Final

Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 900,000 $ 900,000 $ 750,000 $ 150,000
938,370 938,370 750,871 187,499
1,838,370 1,838,370 1,500,871 337,499
1,838,370 1,838,370 1,500,871 (337,499)
$ - 3 - 3 - 3 -
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER, 30, 2007

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $3,982,000 $3,982,000 $§ 71,700 $(3,910,300)
Interest 78,750 78,750 144,326 65,576
Miscellaneous - - 10,637 10,637
Total revenues 4,060,750 4,060,750 226,663 (3,834,087)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - 981,369 (981,369)
Parks and recreation 9,699,170 9,699,170 9,184,323 514,847
Total expenditures 9,699,170 9,699,170 10,165,692 (466,522)
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (5,638,420) (5,638,420) (9,939,029) (4,300,609)
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriation of prior year's fund balance 5,138,420 4,138,420 - (4,138,420)
Bond proceeds - - - -
Transfers in 500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,638,420 5,638,420 1,500,000 (4,138,420)
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 - $(8,439,029) $(8,439,029)
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Table 2
VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS

Fiscal Year

Expenses: 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Governmental activities:
General government $ 2,343 $ 2262 $ 1,790 $ 2457 $§ 2,265 $ 3,946
Public safety 6,553 6,354 6,394 6,441 6,768 6,807
Building, planning and zoning 1,175 1,298 1,394 1,573 1,641 1,801
Parks and recreation 1,650 1,544 2,318 2,503 2,706 2,647
Public works 5,153 4,608 5,948 5,239 5,482 5,236
Interest on long-term debt 377 707 701 842 782 747
Total governmental activities 17,251 16,773 18,545 19,055 19,644 21,184
Business-type activities
Stormwater 126 140 184 213 306 287
Total business-type activities 126 140 184 213 306 287
Total primary government $ 17,377 $16,913 $ 18,729 § 19,268 § 19,950 § 21,471

Program revenues:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government

Public safety 3 9 $ 255 $ 363 $ 275 $§ 469 $§ 594
Building, planning and zoning 1,431 1,481 1,657 1,822 2,122 1,677
Parks and recreation 90 868 399 463 567 553
Public works - - - - - -
Operating grants and contributions 167 155 33 1,106 1,177 1,252
Capital grants and contributions 824 7,100 644 30 - 72
Total governmental activities program revenues 2,608 9,859 3,096 3,690 4,335 4148

Business type activities:
Charges for services:

Stormwater system 228 294 374 376 355 402
Operating grants and contributions - - - - - -

Capital grants and contributions - - 94 1,905 352 -

Total business-type activities program revenues 228 294 468 2,281 707 402

Total primary government program revenues $§ 2,836 $10,153 $§ 3564 $ 5977 $ 5042 $ 4,550

Net (expense) revenue:

Governmental activities $(14,643) §(6,914) $(15,449) $(15,359) $(15,309) $(17,036)
Business-type activities 102 154 284 2,068 401 115
Total primary government net expense $(14,541) $(6,760) $(15,165) $(13,291) $(14,908) $(16,921)

General revenues and other changes in net assets:
Governmental activities:

Ad valorem taxes $ 4145 $ 5234 $§ 5770 $ 6295 $§ 7,117 $ 8,132
Franchise fees on gross receipts 971 914 978 1,029 1,464 1,852
Utility taxes 1,636 1,731 1,674 1,733 1,744 1,802
Communications services tax 652 855 658 777 863 816
Business tax - - - - - 122
Intergovernmental grants, not restricted to specific programs 1,332 1,320 2,641 2,433 2,446 2,014
Interest earnings 253 326 156 451 683 821
Miscellaneous 422 435 509 454 427 390
Total governmental activities 9,411 10,815 12,386 13,172 14,744 15,949
Business-type activities
Interest earnings 19 16 16 22 48 81
Total business-type activities 19 16 16 22 48 81
Total primary government $ 9,430 $10,831 §$ 12,402 $ 13,194 § 14,792 § 106,030
>Changes in net assets:
Government activities $ (5232) $ 3,901 $ (3,063) $ (2,187) $ (565) $ (1,087)
Business-type activities 121 170 300 2,090 449 196
Total primary government $ (5111) § 4071 $ (2,763) § 97 $ (16) $ (89D

The Village of Pinecrest implemented GASB 34 in FY 2002, prior to that date this date was not maintained.
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Fiscal
Year

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS

Ad Franchise Communications

Valorem Fees on Utility Service Transportation
Tax Services Tax Tax Tax

$ 4,145 $§ 971 $1,636 $ 652 $ 640
5,234 914 1,731 855 902
5,770 978 1,674 658 1,039
6,295 1,029 1,733 777 1,106
7,117 1,464 1,744 863 1,178
8,132 1,852 1,802 816 1,252

Table 3

Total

$ 8,044

9,636
10,119
10,940
12,366
13,854

The Village of Pinecrest implemented GASB 34 in FY 2002, prior to that date this date was not maintained.

45-



lovl

V8LY$S 08Y°8% PPELS I8SLS LISTS LLLIIS $99°C$ 6TSS $ +LL9S LSIT$
(195°¢) 8.8V  068Vv €Lb'v  LLI 78¢€ 197°¢  €€8°C €9’ -
0V  Ob¥'e  SLTT  L6TT  T6OT 61T vLT'T  9L6 L08 069
LE6ES TOT $ 6L1 $ TI81S 8YT'€$S 9L1°01$ 6TI'TS 0TLT $ €€€ $ L6y $
9TELS v0T9$ €PISS €8SHS LL89$ 1SEL $ TILLS 9SSTIS 0.88S SI9GS
89T°L G819  800°C  €8€Vv  1.99  T8I‘L 6L8°9  06V°0T  0L0°8  €IES
8¢ ¢§ 61 $ SET $ 00 $ 90T $ 691 $ €88 $ 990°T $ 008 $ <Z0E $
L00C  900C S00C  t00¢C €00¢ 700C 100C 000¢ 6661 8661

LA

IBQX [BOST

SANVSNOHL NI qdSSTddXH SINNONY
(DNILNNODOV 0 SISVE TVIIO0V QAIIIAON)
SAVHA TVOSId NdL ISVT
SANNA TVINHANIIAOD NI SHONVIVL ANN4

VAROT ‘LSTHIINIJ 40 ADVTTII A

Spunj [BJUSUILLISAOL) I9Y)O [[E [BIO.
spunj 103(o1d [eyde)
SpUnj anuaAal [e10adg
:PaAIaSaIUf)
PaAIaSIY
:Spunj [BJUSUILISAOF IaY30 [[V

punj [e1ouasd [B1o].
PaAIasaIuf)
PaAIISIY
:punj [eIausn)



Ihﬁl

G 9lqeL

SANVSNOHL NI a3SS3ddXd SLNNONY
(DNILNNOJDV 40 SISVE TVNEIIV AIIHIAON)
SAVAA TVOSId NAL LSV

SANNA TVINTANIZAOD A0 SHONVIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV STANLIANTdXH ‘SHNNIATYE 40 INTFWHLY LS

VARNOT ‘LSTIDIANIJ 40 AOVTHA

%200  %%t68 TL06 BIL %%Ibv %Ovv %S6t  %95S WIS T %000 sanjpuadxa [ejided-uou Jo a3e1uadiad € se 9014195 1G3(
(LSS L61T $ €2€ $ OLL § (beL'L)$ ToL'ss (6S9°0)$ 1vv'18 Tv8'8$ LTSVS saoue[eq puny ur AgueYo 19N
- - - 000°¢ - 866°L - - GSI‘g - (sasn) sa21n0s Furdueuly ISYI0 [BI0],
(1009 (969 (66vT) (1L9°¢) (zeo'D)  (be9)  (6zev) (9€9) (48D - N0 SIgJSuel],
100°¢ 969°C 66v'1  1L9°€  TEY'l  ¥E9 6TEY  9¢€9 ¥81 - Ul SI9JSuel],
- - - 000 - 866°L - - g1 - 199p JO 30uenss|
:(sasn) $901n0S urouruly YO
(SLS'T)  L61T cece (0T e’ (9670 (659°€)  IvvT L89 LTSy sa1njIpuadxa J9A0 SANUIARI JO (AOUIOLP) $S30XT
8S9°TZ 89891  €£6°91 TILLT 96€8C STHYI LSO'9L  ¥SHIT  8SLIT  61SS saInipuadxa [ej0],
- - - - - o¢1 - - - - $1S02 3oUBNSS]
ISL r4:9) 608 10L 10L 144 149 79¢ v81 - 159191U]
0SL STL 069 0LS (1199 06T 08T SLT - - [edioutid
1901AI3S 199
- SPI'T  ¥L9'E 106 9L6 IPE's  8¢6€ €S9 PEI‘T [eyusuedap-uoN
evIl L8 TTTT 6¥S'T €E€T  99€°1  8LET  SLY LET 1443 s30Mm d1[qng
¥$9°L 786°€ €SYT  ¥S9T  6LEST  8Y9°T  SE8 80¢ 44 - UOJE3I031 pUB SHIed
vT8°l 0v9°1 TPST  9LET  00ET  OVI‘T  ISO'T 906 $69 - Sutuoz pue Suruueld ‘Furpjing
6TL‘9 9€L‘9 pEE'9  TIE9  €0€9  8€T9  698F%  978€  L9I'E  LIYE A3ayes a1qng
L08‘E 621°C REET  LLS 9761 L8TT  6¥6'1 Y9Il 8951 P9 JUSWIUIAAOS [BIDUID)
Juan))
:sainyipuadxyg
€80°0C  S90°61 95891 T8Y'ST T99°0T 6TITI 86ETI  S68TI  SY¥TI  9¥0°0l SINUIAI [EI0],
06¢€ LTY 434 605 £98 Iz¢g 011 1T L8 8¢ SNOJUE[[IISIA
L08 0L9 LEY 951 213 €T 768 6€0‘T  STS 68C 1sa19)u]
%S oLy LT 18¢ 1T 61T 44 67T €61 171 $9.1)1910J PUE SAUL]
909 619 €9 8% 343 9T 16€ Y 98¢ S6€ $301A155 10 Sa31BYD)
8€E'E €79°¢ 0LS°€  8IE€  SLS'S  €TET  6L6 68v'1  901'C  61¥ [eIUSLILLISA0S 1]
LLYT (AAN4 TT81 LS9'T  LIF'T €9€°T  ITI‘T TSOT 68 €68 siuuad pue sasuadl]
pTLTIS 88I°I1S SE€8°6$ 080'6% PEL'S § HvOV'LS €98 $ €Tv'8$ 61€8% 188°LS SIXE],
ISANUIADY
1002 900¢ S00C  ¥00C  €00C  C00C  100Z  000C 6661 8661
Iea X [easig



Fiscal
Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

- 2004

2005

2006

2007

Taxes

$7,360,276

8,318,873

8,423,089

8,673,171

7,403,931

8,734,449

9,080,086

9,834,612

11,188,038

12,724,310

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY FUNCTION

Source: General fund for fiscal year 1998.

Note: This schedule is prepared on a GAAP basis.
The information reported is from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

General fund and special revenue funds for fiscal year 1999.
All governmental funds for fiscal years commencing 2000

-48-

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Licenses Charges Fines

and Inter- for and

Permits Governmental Services Forfeitures Interest Misc.

$ 893,005 $ 314,559 §$77,128 $ 137,634 $ 240,461 $27,470
829,305 463,889 385,923 193,163 472,792 87,193
1,051,945 1,488,698 447,999 229,366 1,039,238 214,836
1,120,887 979,321 390,716 231,873 892,535 110,428
1,362,665 2,322,980 246,445 219,151 252,897 321,026
1,416,741 8,575,259 544,766 214,524 312,738 863,096
1,656,751 3,318,279 480,774 281,158 155,854 509,096
1,821,586 3,569,813 463,108 274,974 437,419 454,296
2,121,715 3,623,129 619,666 416,425 669,998 426,567
1,676,528 3,337,845 606,006 541,087 807,396 370,351

Table 6

Total
$ 9,050,533
10,751,138
12,895,171
12,398,931
12,129,095
20,661,573
15,481,998
16,855,808
19,065,538

20,063,523



Fiscal
Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Real
Property
Assessed

Value

$1,657,437,548

1,736,986,871
1,832,884,111
2,028,549,847
2,231,723,235
2,457,111,202
2,692,568,177
3,053,194,733
3,460,282,932

3,942,371,638

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Personal Total
Property Assessed Direct
Assessed Property Tax
Value Value Rate
$42,538,893 $1,699,976,441 2.1
48,367,813 1,785,354,684 2.1
49,266,728 1,882,150,839 2.1
44,051,288 2,072,601,135 2.1
45,728,441 2,277,451,676 24
42,781,470 2,499,892,672 24
45,247,052 2,737,815,229 24
44,846,184 3,098,040,917 24
39,173,088 3,499,456,020 24
46,427,219 3,988,798,857 1.95

Data is provided by the Miami-Dade County Appraiser's Office.

-49.

Estimated
Actual
Taxable
Value

$1,789,448,885

1,879,320,720
1,981,211,409
2,181,685,405
2,397,317,554
2,631,465,971
2,881,910,767
3,261,095,702
3,683,637,916

4,198,735,639

Table 7

Assessed
Value as a
Percentage

of actual

Value

95%
95%
95%
95%
95%
95%
95%
95%
95%

95%
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Fiscal
Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Notes:

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activities
General Total
Obligation Outstanding Primary
Bonds* (2) Bonds Government
$ - $ . $ i
8,155 - 8,155
7,880 - 7,880
7,600 - 7,600
15,050 - 15,050
14,500 - 14,500
17,005 - 17,005
16,315 - 16,315
15,590 - 15,590
14,840 - 14,840

*In thousands

(1) Fiscal year 2000, US Census.

Fiscal years 2002 and thereafter the population as estimated by the Bureau
of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.
(2) The Village of Pinecrest Finance Department 1s the source for this data.

-52-

Population

(1
17,800
17,984
19,055
19,064
19,078
19,286
19,317
19,460
19,530

19,382

Table 10

Per Capita

Debt

453
414
399
789
752
880
838
798

766



Fiscal
Year

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Notes:

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
Ratio of
Assessed Bonded
General Value of Debt to
Obligation Taxable Assessed
Bonds* (2) Property* (3) Value
$ 8,155 $ 1,736,987 0.47%
7,880 1,832,884 0.43%
7,600 2,028,550 0.37%
15,050 2,231,723 0.67%
14,500 2,457,111 0.59%
17,005 2,692,568 0.63%
16,315 3,098,041 0.53%
15,990 3,499,456 0.46%
14,840 3.942.372 0.38%

*In thousands

(1) Fiscal year 2000, US Census.
Fiscal years 2002 and thereafter the population as estimated by the Bureau
of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.

(2) The Village of Pinecrest Finance Department is the source for this data.
(3) Data is provided by the Miami Dade County's Property Appraiser.
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Population

R00)

17,984
19,055
19,064
19,078
19,286
19,317
19,460
19,530

19,382

Table 11

Per Capita
Debt

$ 453
414
399
789
752
880
838
819

766



Jurisdiction

Direct:
Village of Pinecrest

Overlapping:

School Board (2)
County (3)

Notes:

(1) Based upon population; Village of Pinecrest and Miami-Dade County

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007

Bonded
Debt

Outstanding

$ 14,840,000

Percentage
Applicable
to
Pinecrest (1)

$ 541,525,000
472,236,000

$1,013,761,000

100.00%

0.80%
0.80%

(2) Amounts provided by School Board are as of June 30th.

(3) Amounts provided by the Miami-Dade County Finance Department
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Amount
Applicable
to
Pinecrest

$ 14,840,000

Table 12

Amount
Per
Capita
Pinecrest (1)

$ 4,324,575
3,771,238

$ 8,095,813

$ 766
$ 223

195
$ 415




Fiscal
Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Notes:

Population

17,986
17,984
19,055
19,064
19,078
19,268
19,317
19,460
19,530

19,382

*In thousands

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Median School
Household Household Enrollment
Income (1 Units (1) 2)
NA NA 6,541
NA NA 7,263
$ 107,507 6,261 8,883
107,507 6,261 7,574
107,507 6,261 6,788
107,507 6,261 6,788
107,507 6,261 6,796
107,507 6,261 6,814
107,507 6,261 6,877
107,507 6,261 6,345

(1) Fiscal year 2000, US Census.
Fiscal years 2002 and thereafter the population as estimated by the Bureau

of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.

(2) The Miami Dade School system is the source of this data
(3) The Department of Labor is the source of this data.
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Table 13

Unemployment
Rate (3)

NA

NA

NA
7.2%
7.4%
7.3%
6.1%
4.0%
3.1%

4.2%



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Table 14

2007 1998
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Village Village
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Miami Dade School System 514 1 NA NA NA NA
Kendall Toyota 365 2 NA NA NA NA
“Village of Pinecrest 168 3 NA NA NA NA
Falls Pontica-GMS, Inc 53 4 NA NA NA NA
First Bank 28 5 NA NA NA NA
Young, Stovall and Company 26 6 NA NA NA NA
Prudential Florida WCI Realty 25 7 NA NA NA NA
Commerce Bank 20 8 NA NA NA NA
Color World Beauty Inc 19 9 NA NA NA NA
Langford Insurance Agency, Inc. 18 10 NA NA NA NA
Total 1,236

Source: Occupational License records of the Village of Pinecrest, except Miami Dade School Board and the

Village of Pinecrest.

The Miami Dade School System provided data for the school system.

See Full time equivalent position table for the Village of Pinecrest data.
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Function
Police:
Number of stations
Number of police vehicles

Parks:
Parks
Park acreage
Tennis courts

Public works:
Miles of roads
Cable television systems

Public schools:
High schools

Middle schools
Elementary schools

TABLE 17
VIiLLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full time Equivalents as of September 30:
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

32 31 33 33 33 33 33 19 19 13

62 61 60 60 60 36 36 32 32 22

108 108 108 108 108 108 101 101 101 101
2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
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Compliance Section



Cober
CHoltz

Accountants Advisors

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the
Village) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2007. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village of Pinecrest’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Village's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Village’s financial statements that i1s more
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Village’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the Village’s internal control.
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Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida
Page Two

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, grant agreements and other matters, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, Village Council, management,
and regulatory agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

/4232¢:¢£1Qa‘_ Cobln. ~ ‘:;aiﬂfgi ALALP
Miami, Florida
December 27, 2007
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Cober
CHolt=

Accountants Advisors

Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida

Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the Village) as of and for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2007.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. We have issued our Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters.
Disclosures in those reports which are dated December 27, 2007, should be considered in conjunction
with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida and, unless otherwise required to be reported in the report on compliance and internal controls
this letter is required to include the following information.

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address significant findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. There were no significant findings and recommendations made in the
preceding annual financial audit report.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In connection
with our audit, we determined that the Village complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve financial management, accounting procedures, and internal controls. In
connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Section 10.554(1)(1)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements or abuse that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
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Honorable Mayor, Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida
Page Two

Section 10.554(1)(1)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, based on professional judgment, the
reporting of the following matters that are inconsequential to the financial statements, considering both
quantitative and qualitative factors: (1) violations of laws, rules, regulations, and contractual provisions
or abuse that have occurred, or were likely to have occurred, and would have an immaterial effect on the
financial statements; (2) improper expenditures or illegal acts that would have an immaterial effect on the
financial statements; and (3) control deficiencies that are not significant deficiencies, including, but not
limited to; (a) improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g., the omission of required disclosures
from the financial statements); (b) failures to properly record financial transactions; and (c) other
inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, and instances of fraud discovered by, or that come to the attention
of, the auditor. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

Section 10.554(1)(1)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Village of Pinecrest was
incorporated by Ordinance 95-207 adopted by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners on
November 12, 1995. There are no component units related to the Village.

Section 10.554(1)(1)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to whether or
not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1),
Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the Village did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida
Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(i)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether the annual
financial report for the Village for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, filed with the Florida
Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with
the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. In connection with our
audit, we determined that these two reports were in agreement.

Sections 10.554(1)(1)7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply financial
condition assessment procedures. In connection with our audit, we applied financial condition assessment
procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the entity’s financial condition, and our
financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review
of financial information provided by same. The assessment was done as of the fiscal year end. There
were no findings that identified deteriorating financial conditions.

This management letter is intended solely for the information of the Honorable Mayor, Village Council
and Village Manager of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

fedleie Cofle - Aty sp
Miami, Florida
December 27, 2007
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